
UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA

AMERICAN SOCIETY FOR THE PREVENTION )
OF CRUELTY TO ANIMALS, et al., )

)
Plaintiffs, )

)
v. )

)   Civ. No. 03-2006 (EGS/JMF)
)

RINGLING BROTHERS AND BARNUM & BAILEY )           
CIRCUS, et al., )

)
Defendants. )

PLAINTIFFS’ SUR-REPLY IN RESPONSE TO FELD ENTERTAINMENT INC.’s
REPLY IN SUPPORT OF ITS “MOTION TO ENFORCE THE COURT’S 

SEPTEMBER 26, 2005 ORDER”

Plaintiffs file this sur-reply to correct three misstatements of  “fact” that were asserted in

the Reply in Support of Defendant Feld Entertainment Inc.’s “Expedited Motion To Enforce the

Court’s September 26, 2005 Order” (“FEI Reply”).  

1. In that reply FEI incorrectly states that “FEI has consistently refused to comment

on this case to the press.”  FEI Reply at 7-8.  In fact, FEI spokespersons have often commented to

the press “about this case” – calling it completely unsubstantiated, meritless, and part of the

plaintiffs’ “extremist” “political agenda.”  See, e.g., The Kansas City Star (2003) (“This suit is

clearly part of their political campaign to remove animals from circuses and their continuing

attempt to use the courts to further their agenda . . . no matter how these extremist groups try to

mischaracterize procedural rulings in the case and mislead the public, their allegations run

exactly counter to what millions of families see each year when they come to Ringling Bros. and
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  See also id., Springfield State Journal-Register (circus representatives issued a1

statement saying that “the case has no legal merit”); The Patriot News, id. (the spokeswoman for
the circus “called the lawsuit ‘meritless’” . . . “We believe the allegations . . . to be
unsubstantiated and to be contradicted by the findings from more than 40 inspections that federal,
state and local officials have conducted . . .”); Press-Telegram, id. (“Ringling Bros. officials deny
the allegations by the American Society for the Prevention of Cruelty to Animals . . . [t]hey call
the lawsuit ‘part of a political campaign to remove animals’ from the circus”); Chicago Tribune
(Ringling Bros. Vice President for Government Relations states that “They are alleging that
anytime we do anything with an elephant we are violating the Endangered Species Act”).

  See, e.g. id., ABC7 I-Team (quoting Ringling’s “animal stewardship director” stating2

that “Tom Rider worked for Ringling Brothers for two years and never once did he make a
complaint about what he says he witnessed . . . Today he works for an extremist hate
organization and he gets paid to do it.  He shoveled manure for us then and he shovels manure
today”).

-2-

Barnum & Bailey”) (attached as Exhibit 1).   FEI also frequently tells the media that Mr. Rider is1

making up his eye-witness accounts that Ringling Brothers mistreats the Asian elephants in its

care and that he is being “paid” to make these statements.  2

2. On page 8 of the reply FEI also states that Mr. Rider has “not” filed tax returns

“since 1998.”  This statement is also incorrect – as FEI’s counsel knows.  In fact, as Mr. Rider

stated he would do in his declaration to the Court in opposition to defendants’ motion to add a

counterclaim in this case, see Exhibit 38 to Docket No. 132, in April 2007 Mr. Rider filed tax

returns for the years 1998-2006.   FEI knows this because, prior to the date that it filed its reply

stating otherwise, Mr. Rider offered to provide defendants with the relevant portions of those

returns subject to a confidentiality agreement – an offer that defendants have thus far chosen to

ignore.  See Letter from Katherine Meyer to George Gasper (sent by e-mail June 26, 2007)

(attached as Exhibit 2); see also 26 U.S.C. § 1603(b)(2) (personal tax returns are not to be

disclosed to the public); accord, Church of Scientology of California v. Internal Revenue Service,
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  The fragmented document relied on by FEI appears to have been provided to3

defendants in violation of Mr. Rider’s Privacy Act rights.  See 5 U.S.C. § 552a(b) (prohibiting all
government agencies from releasing to third parties personal information about an individual
without the “prior written consent of” that person).   In any event, Mr. Rider previously agreed to
provide FEI with complete information about his military service subject to a confidentiality
agreement to protect his personal privacy, but FEI has refused to agree to such an agreement. 
Accordingly, Mr. Rider has moved for a protective order with regard to this matter.  See Docket
No.  106. 

-3-

792 F.2d 153 (D.C. Cir. 1986).

3. On page 8 of FEI’s Reply,  FEI also states, without any supporting evidence, that

Tom Rider “was declared a deserter from the United States Army.”  This extremely defamatory

statement about Mr. Rider is also incorrect.  Although FEI has revealed to plaintiffs that it has a

copy of a partial military record from 1969-71 concerning Mr. Rider that contains an unidentified

person’s notation “dropped from rolls - deserter,” this document does not state, let alone

demonstrate, that Mr. Rider was ever “declared a deserter from the United States Army.”  In fact,

the document upon which FEI is relying for this clearly defamatory statement further reflects that

Mr. Rider participated as a “duty soldier” in the Army after the notations upon which FEI relies

were made  – belying defendant’s assertion that Mr. Rider was nevertheless “declared a deserter”

by the Army.  See Exhibit F to Defendant Feld Entertainment Inc.’s Motion to Compel

Testimony of Plaintiff Tom Eugene Rider (Docket No. 101) (attached hereto as Exhibit 3).3

Respectfully submitted,

/s/   Katherine A. Meyer                        
Katherine A. Meyer
(D.C. Bar No. 244301)
Kimberly D. Ockene
(D.C. Bar No. 461191)
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Tanya M. Sanerib
(D.C. Bar No. 473506)

Meyer Glitzenstein & Crystal
1601 Connecticut Ave., N.W.
Suite 700
Washington, D.C.  20009
(202)  588-5206

Date: July 18, 2007
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